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Reference: 854016 

 

Jerin John 

Information Rights Adviser 

Chris Steele 

xxxxxxxxxxx.xxxxxxxx@xxxxx.xxx.xx 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxxxxxxx.xxx  

 

 

10 February 2020 

 
 
 
Dear Mr Steele, 

Freedom of Information: Right to know request 

Thank you for your request for information in relation to printers/printing devices. 

We received this request on 3 March and have considered it under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000 (“the Act”).  

Your request and our response 

Please see below our response to your questions below: 

1.  Please state the number of printers currently within the organization, including a breakdown 

of number MFD´s, printers & photocopiers. 

We have 26 printers in total, 23 multi-function devices and 3 printers. 

2.  Please state the number of devices that are A3 compatible. 

All of the printers are A3 compatible. 

3.  What percentage of your fleet is printed in colour vs mono? 

70% of our printing is in mono and 30% is in colour. All 26 MFDs have the capability to print 
in colour. 

4.  In terms of usage, what is your monthly page volumes? 

This is approximately 119,500 a month. 

5.  Who are the main manufacturers for the printers (hardware)? 

Xerox and Kyocera. 

6.  Who is your preferred supplier for Hardware? 

We do not have a hardware preference; however Xerox provide managed print services to 
us. 
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7.  Who are the main supplier(s) of print consumables (Toner, spares, etc)? 

Xerox. 

8.  What is the approximate spend on printers and consumables during the last year? 

The information you requested is being withheld as it falls under the exemption in section 
43(2) of the Act. This deals with the exemption of information that would prejudice the 
commercial interests of a person or company. In applying this exemption, we have had to 
balance the public interest in withholding the information against the public interest in 
disclosing the information. Annex A to this letter sets out the exemption in full, as well as the 
factors Ofcom considered when deciding where the public interest lay. 

9.  What Framework (if any) do you use for your print consumables (toners, inks)  

We do not buy consumables outside of the managed print services contract. 

10. What are the start and end dates for the managed print contract in your organization (if 

applicable to the MFD´s)? 

Start date is in Q3 2015 and the end date of the managed print services contract is Q1 20201. 

11. Which procurement route or framework was used to procure this service? 

Crown Commercial Services Framework RM1559 MDF and Services, Managed Print Services 
and Print Audit Services. 

12. The named person and their role in your organization in charge of the procurement for Print 

Hardware 

Declan Costello, ICT Director. 

13. The named person and their role in your organization in charge of any managed print 

contracts. 

See answer to 12. 

14. The named person and their role in your organization in charge of procurement for Print 

supplies (toner and ink) 

See answer to 12. 

I hope this information is helpful. If you have any further queries, then please send them to 
xxxxxxxxxxx.xxxxxxxx@xxxxx.xxx.xx quoting the reference number above in any future 
communications. 

                                                            
1 Please note that ‘Quarter’ (Q) refers to the Financial Year, not the calendar year. 
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Yours sincerely, 

 

Jerin John 
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If you are unhappy with the response or level of service you have received in relation to your request from Ofcom, you may ask for an 
internal review. If you ask us for an internal review of our decision, it will be treated as a formal complaint and will be subject to an 
independent review within Ofcom. We will acknowledge the complaint and inform you of the date by which you might expect to be told 
the outcome. 
The following outcomes are possible: 
• the original decision is upheld; or 
• the original decision is reversed or modified.  
 
Timing 
If you wish to exercise your right to an internal review you should contact us within two months of the date of this letter. There is no 
statutory deadline for undertaking internal reviews and it will depend upon the complexity of the case. However, we aim to conclude all 
such reviews within 20 working days, and up to 40 working days in exceptional cases. We will keep you informed of the progress of any 
such review. If you wish to request an internal review, you should contact: 
  
Corporation Secretary 
Ofcom 
Riverside House 
2a Southwark Bridge Road 
London SE1 9HA 
  
If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review, you have the right to apply directly to the Information Commissioner for a 
decision.  The Information Commissioner can be contacted at:  
 
Information Commissioner’s Office 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow 
Cheshire 
SK9 5AF 
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Annex A 

Section 43(2) – where information, if disclosed, would, or would be likely to, prejudice the 
commercial interests of a company  

Factors for disclosure 

Factors for withholding 

•  Enabling the public to gain a better 

•  Ofcom contracts with a number of 

understanding of the commercial 

companies and has a financial 

relationships between Ofcom and its 

relationship with them. Companies 

suppliers and the nature of the 

need to be confident that information 

services provided, and thereby 

relating to their business, such as 

increasing public confidence in 

information about them as an 

Ofcom’s work.  

organisation or relating to their 

•

products or services, will not be 

  Generally, there is a public interest in 

disclosed if it would, or would be 

transparency of expenditure, 

likely to, prejudice their commercial 

especially if large sums of public 

interests.  

money are involved.  

•  The approximate spend is not 

 

significant that it warrants disclosure.  

•  Ofcom continues to negotiate and 

require contracts like those related to 
this request. To release the spend 
would put Ofcom in a detrimental 
position for future contract 
negotiations and would undermine its 
bargaining position with potential 
suppliers. In addition, to release the 
amount Ofcom pays for a service 
could prejudice the commercial 
interests of the supplier – in that it 
would provide details of the supplier’s 
commercial relationships to its 
competitors or potential contractors.  

Reasons why public interest favours withholding information 
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•  Ofcom enjoys a positive relationship with those companies it contracts with. The 

release of information into the public domain which would, or would be likely to, 
prejudice commercial interests would impair both Ofcom’s relationship with providers 
of services, and adversely affect its commercial relationships with other contractors. If 
contractors could not be confident that such information provided by them to Ofcom 
would be withheld from disclosure, except in compelling circumstances, commercial 
activity may be impeded. Similarly, Ofcom’s bargaining position, and therefore ability 
to obtain value for money in services it contracts for, may be undermined in future 
negotiations if full details about the cost of these services were disclosed. These 
considerations go against the public interest in disclosing. 
 

•  The weight attached to the public interest in disclosing is fairly limited, in comparison 

to the weight attached to avoiding the prejudice which would be caused by disclosure, 
in view of the limited expenditure/contract value and the limited contribution that the 
information would make to enabling the public to understand how Ofcom performs its 
functions in this context.  
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